
                                   ERNIE WIPF 
                                  CHAIR 

                  JULIE BAWCOM 
                     VICE-CHAIR 

  
      THERESA MCNERLIN 
               DIRECTOR 

                   DARWIN DICK 
                  DIRECTOR 

            CANDACE HORSLEY 
            DIRECTOR 

 

 

 
 

DISTRICT OFFICE  151 LAWS AVENUE  SUITE B  UKIAH, CALIFORNIA  95482 
TELEPHONE: (707) 462-4429  E-MAIL: dm@uvsd.org  WEBSITE: WWW.uvsd.org 

 

 

UKIAH VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT REGULAR MEETING  
WEDNESDAY October 12, 2022 AT 6:00PM 

LOCATION:  
DISTRICT’S MEETING ROOM – 151 LAWS AVE., UKIAH, CA 95482  

AND 
TELECONFERENCE VIA ZOOM  

Call in number: 1-669-900-6833 
Meeting ID: 861-3712-6985 

Zoom Link:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86137126985 
 
  

The Board welcomes participation in the Board meetings. If you are joining the meeting via 
Zoom and wish to make a comment on an item, press the “raise a hand” button. If you are 
joining the meeting by phone, press *9 to indicate a desire to make a comment. The chair will call 
you by name or phone number when it is your turn to comment. Speakers will be limited to 3 
minutes. If you choose not to observe the meeting via Zoom and wish to make a comment on a 
specific agenda item, please submit your comment via email to the Board Secretary at 
aa@uvsd.org at least one hour before the meeting. All public comments submitted to the Board 
Secretary will be read verbatim for up to 3 minutes. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you 
need disability-related modifications or accommodation to participate in this meeting, then 
please contact Chelsea Teague, Board Secretary at 707-462-4429. Requests must be made as 
early as possible, and at least one-full business day before the start of the meeting. The times 
indicated for agenda items are estimated and the Board reserves the right to address items either 
earlier or later than scheduled. 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

3. PUBLIC EXPRESSION OF NON-AGENDIZED ITEMS 
 

4. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

• September 14, 2022 Regular Meeting 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

• Check Register for September 2022 

• LAIF Statement for September 2022 

• Unaudited Monthly Financial Statements 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86137126985


                                   ERNIE WIPF 
                                  CHAIR 

                  JULIE BAWCOM 
                     VICE-CHAIR 

  
      THERESA MCNERLIN 
               DIRECTOR 

                   DARWIN DICK 
                  DIRECTOR 

            CANDACE HORSLEY 
            DIRECTOR 

 

 

 
 

DISTRICT OFFICE  151 LAWS AVENUE  SUITE B  UKIAH, CALIFORNIA  95482 
TELEPHONE: (707) 462-4429  E-MAIL: dm@uvsd.org  WEBSITE: WWW.uvsd.org 

 

 

6. OLD BUSINESS  
 

None. 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

• A.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION RE:  Mendocino LAFCo Official 
Independent Special District 2022 Election Ballot 
 
Recommended Action:  Vote for one candidate to serve as regular special 
district member on Mendocino LAFCo  and direct Board Chair and Secretary 
of the Board to certify the ballot and return to the LAFCo Office. 
 

8. ANNOUNCEMENTS/OTHER BUSINESS/MATTERS FROM STAFF 
 

a) General Manager Report of Ongoing District Activities 
b) ESSU Statistics Report 
c) Staff Report 
d) Report on JPA  
e) Directors' Reports 
f) Letters Received or Sent 
g) Announce Regular Meeting – November 9, 2022  

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 



UVSD Regular Board Meeting September 14, 2022 via teleconference (hybrid 
meeting)  

1. CALL TO ORDER by Chair Wipf at 6:02pm. Roll call by Chelsea Teague – Director Dick arrived 
at 6:17pm. 

All board members arrived in-person. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion to approve the agenda by Director McNerlin, seconded by Vice-Chair Bawcom. Roll call 
vote: Ayes – 4 Nays – 0 (Director Dick was not present yet). Motion carries. No public comment. 

3. PUBLIC EXPRESSION OF NON-AGENDIZED ITEMS 

No public comment. 

4. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

No public comment. Motion to approve Board Meeting Minutes by Director Horsley, seconded 
by Director McNerlin. Roll call vote: Ayes – 4 Nays – 0 (Director Dick was not present yet). 
Motion carries. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Motion to approve the Consent Calendar by Director Horsley, seconded by Director McNerlin. 
No public comment. Roll call vote: Ayes – 4 Nays – 0 (Director Dick was not present yet). 
Motion carries. 

6. OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

7. NEW BUSNINESS  

A. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION RE: RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT 
WITH THE LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BIDDER, GHILOTTI CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC., 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $222,715 FOR THE NORTH STATE STREET – 8” GRAVITY SEWER 
LINE PROJECT AND APPROVING THE PROJECT PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
(SPECIFICATION NO. 22-01)   

Recommended Action: Approve Resolution Awarding a Construction Contract and 

Authorizing the General Manager to Execute the Contract with the Lowest 

Responsible Bidder, Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc., in the Amount of 

$222,715 for the North State Street – 8” Gravity Sewer Line Project and Approving 

the Project Plans and Specifications (Specification No. 22-01) 

Board discussion. Director Dick arrived. No public comment. Motion to approve 
Resolution awarding a construction contract and authorizing the General Manager to 



execute the contract with the lowest responsible bidder, Ghilotti Construction 
Company, Inc. in the amount of $222,715 for the North State Street – 8” gravity sewer 
line project and approving the project plans as specifications (Specification No. 22-01) 
by Director McNerlin, seconded by Vice-Chair Bawcom. Roll call vote: Ayes – 5 Nays – 0. 
Motion carries. 

B. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION RE: APPROVE VACTOR 2100i (ESTIMATED COST 
OF $225,000 ALLOCATED FOR SEWER PURPOSES) AS A JOINT CITY-DISTRICT CAPITAL 
ITEM 

Board discussion. No public comment. Motion to approve Vactor 2100i (estimated cost 
of $225,000 allocated for sewer purposes) as a joint City-District capital item by Director 
Dick, seconded by Vice-Chair Bawcom. Roll call vote: Ayes – 5 Nays – 0. Motion carries. 

8. ANNOUNCEMENTS/OTHER BUSINESS/MATTERS FROM STAFF 
 

a) Wing-See Fox gave a report regarding LAFCo’s September meeting, the budget 
recalculation by Hildebrand (the split), the Out of Area Service Agreement 
Application, monthly operating staff meetings with the City of Ukiah, progress on the 
Audit for FY 2021-22, and the LAFCo election which will be back at the October 
Regular Meeting.   

b) Board received the ESSU Statistics Report 
c) None.  
d) No report.   
e) None.  
f) Attached.  
g) Next Regular Meeting – October 12, 2022. 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT - Meeting adjourned at 6:47p.m. 

 



 2:42 PM

 10/07/22
 Ukiah Valley Sanitation District

 Check Detail
 September 2022

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check 2142 09/01/2022 City of Ukiah 1001 · UVSD Checking -213,030.20

 

Bill 092022 09/01/2022 6300 · Operating Expense Allocation -213,030.20 213,030.20

TOTAL -213,030.20 213,030.20

 

Bill Pmt -Check 2144 09/26/2022 Best Best & Krieger LLP 1001 · UVSD Checking -1,695.80

 

Bill 944853 08/31/2022 5601 · General Counsel -1,695.80 1,695.80

TOTAL -1,695.80 1,695.80

 

Bill Pmt -Check 2145 09/26/2022 Clifton Larson Allen, LLP 1001 · UVSD Checking -8,000.00

 

Bill 3401945 08/31/2022 5307 · Financial Review/Monthly Report -8,000.00 8,000.00

TOTAL -8,000.00 8,000.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check 2146 09/26/2022 Hildebrand Consulting, LLC 1001 · UVSD Checking -1,380.00

 

Bill 473 08/31/2022 5305 · Financial & Managerial Support -1,380.00 1,380.00

TOTAL -1,380.00 1,380.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check 2147 09/26/2022 Mark DeMeulenaere 1001 · UVSD Checking -1,650.00

 

Bill 082022 08/31/2022 5305 · Financial & Managerial Support -1,650.00 1,650.00

TOTAL -1,650.00 1,650.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check 2148 09/26/2022 RespecTech, Inc. 1001 · UVSD Checking -59.50

 

Bill 45981 08/31/2022 5209 · Information Technology-All -59.50 59.50

TOTAL -59.50 59.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check 2149 09/26/2022 Tri-Cities 1001 · UVSD Checking -127.45

 

Bill 220800577101 08/31/2022 5201 · Telephone & DSL -127.45 127.45

TOTAL -127.45 127.45

 

Bill Pmt -Check 2150 09/26/2022 Urban Futures, Inc. 1001 · UVSD Checking -6,500.00

 

Bill 0822-001 08/31/2022 5101 · Management - UFI -6,500.00 6,500.00

TOTAL -6,500.00 6,500.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check 2151 09/26/2022 Willow Water District 1001 · UVSD Checking -12,977.77

 

Bill 150 08/31/2022 5102 · MSA - Willow -11,920.95 11,920.95

5402 · Parcel Quest -199.95 199.95

5209 · Information Technology-All -107.40 107.40

5206 · Supplies -115.94 115.94

Bill 536 09/01/2022 5203 · Office Rent -463.00 463.00

5204 · Office Utilities -170.53 170.53

TOTAL -12,977.77 12,977.77

Savings Bank of Mendocino County

Beginning Balance as of 9/01/2022      $716,970.22

Ending Balance as of 9/30/2022            $622,234.78

 Page 1 of 1





UKIAH VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MONTH ENDED AND FISCAL YEAR TO DATE  

JULY 31, 2022 

Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



UKIAH VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

MONTH ENDED AND FISCAL YEAR TO DATE JULY 31, 2022 

These accrual basis financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, 
and no opinion nor assurance is provided hereon.  Substantially all disclosures and RSI required by US generally 
accepted accounting principles have been omitted.  See Selected Information. 

Basic Financial Statements 

Fund Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position 1 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 2 

Selected Notes To The Financial Statements 3 

 

Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



UKIAH VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JULY 31, 2022 
 
 
 

These accrual basis financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, and no 
opinion nor assurance is provided hereon.  Substantially all disclosures and RSI required by US generally accepted 
accounting principles have been omitted.  See Selected Information. 

(1) 

 
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Investments 11,435,117$    
Accounts Receivable 977,274           
Interest Receivable 25,000             
Restricted Cash 501,985           
Due from City of Ukiah 1,000,000        
Prepaid Expenses 1,658

Total Current Assets 13,941,034      

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:

Depreciable, Net 28,268,618      
Total Noncurrent Assets 28,268,618      

Total Assets 42,209,652      

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 159,967           
Accrued Interest 223,800           
Customer Deposits Payable 36,800
Bonds Payable - Due in One Year 1,466,000        

Total Current Liabilities 1,886,567        

Long-Term Liabilities:
Bonds Payable - Due in More Than One Year 20,729,000      

Total Long-Term Liabilities 20,729,000      
Total Liabilities 22,615,567      

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,073,618        
Unrestricted 13,520,467

Total Net Position 19,594,085$    
 

 Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



UKIAH VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

MONTH ENDED AND FISCAL YEAR TO DATE JULY 31, 2022 
 
 
 

These accrual basis financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, and no 
opinion nor assurance is provided hereon.  Substantially all disclosures and RSI required by US generally accepted 
accounting principles have been omitted.  See Selected Information. 

(2) 

 
Month Ended Fiscal Year to Date
July 31, 2022 July 31, 2022

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services 455,070$                  455,070$                 
Connection Fees -                                -                               

Total Operating Revenues 455,070                    455,070                   

OPERATING EXPENSES
Services and Supplies 45,768                      45,768                     
Operating Expense Allocation - City of Ukiah 213,030                    213,030                   
Legal Expense 1,575                        1,575                       
Depreciation and Amortization 66,164                      66,164                     

Total Operating Expenses 326,537                    326,537                   

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 128,533                    128,533                   

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Taxes and Assessments -                                -                               
Interest Income 2,502                        2,502                       
Interest and Bond Expense (44,760)                     (44,760)                    

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (42,258)                     (42,258)                    

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 86,275                      86,275                     

Net Position -  June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2022 19,507,810 19,507,810

NET POSITION - END OF PERIOD 19,594,085$             19,594,085$            

 

Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



UKIAH VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 
SELECTED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FISCAL YEAR TO DATE JULY 31, 2022 
 
 
 

These accrual basis financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, and no 
opinion nor assurance is provided hereon.  Substantially all disclosures and RSI required by US generally accepted 
accounting principles have been omitted.  See Selected Information. 

(3) 

 
Ukiah Valley Sanitation District 
Selected Information  
For the  month ended and fiscal year to date July 31, 2022 
 
 
The accompanying financial statements include the following departures from accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America: 
 
The financial statements omit substantially all of the disclosures required by accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
  
The financial statements omit all required supplementary information, such as management discussion and 
analysis as required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
As of the month ended July 31, 2022, the District’s operating expense allocation from the City of Ukiah had not 
been determined. 
 
The effects of these departures have not been determined.  
 
 
 
 
 
   

Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



UKIAH VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MONTH ENDED AND FISCAL YEAR TO DATE  

AUGUST 31, 2022 

Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



UKIAH VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

MONTH ENDED AND FISCAL YEAR TO DATE AUGUST 31, 2022 

These accrual basis financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, 
and no opinion nor assurance is provided hereon.  Substantially all disclosures and RSI required by US generally 
accepted accounting principles have been omitted.  See Selected Information. 

Basic Financial Statements 

Fund Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position 1 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 2 

Selected Notes To The Financial Statements 3 

 

Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



UKIAH VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

AUGUST 31, 2022 
 
 
 

These accrual basis financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, and no 
opinion nor assurance is provided hereon.  Substantially all disclosures and RSI required by US generally accepted 
accounting principles have been omitted.  See Selected Information. 

(1) 

 
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Investments 10,760,004$    
Accounts Receivable 818,170           
Interest Receivable 27,500             
Restricted Cash 1,503,546        
Due from City of Ukiah 1,000,000        
Prepaid Expenses 3,783

Total Current Assets 14,113,003      

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:

Depreciable, Net 28,202,454      
Total Noncurrent Assets 28,202,454      

Total Assets 42,315,457      

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 149,203           
Accrued Interest 268,560           
Customer Deposits Payable 36,300
Bonds Payable - Due in One Year 1,466,000        

Total Current Liabilities 1,920,063        

Long-Term Liabilities:
Bonds Payable - Due in More Than One Year 20,729,000      

Total Long-Term Liabilities 20,729,000      
Total Liabilities 22,649,063      

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,007,454        
Unrestricted 13,658,940

Total Net Position 19,666,394$    
 

 Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



UKIAH VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

MONTH ENDED AND FISCAL YEAR TO DATE AUGUST 31, 2022 
 
 
 

These accrual basis financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, and no 
opinion nor assurance is provided hereon.  Substantially all disclosures and RSI required by US generally accepted 
accounting principles have been omitted.  See Selected Information. 

(2) 

 
Month Ended Fiscal Year to Date

August 31, 2022 August 31, 2022
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services 428,542$                  883,612$                 
Connection Fees -                                -                               

Total Operating Revenues 428,542                    883,612                   

OPERATING EXPENSES
Services and Supplies 33,085                      78,853                     
Operating Expense Allocation - City of Ukiah 213,030                    426,060                   
Legal Expense 1,696                        3,271                       
Depreciation and Amortization 66,164                      132,328                   

Total Operating Expenses 313,975                    640,512                   

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 114,567                    243,100                   

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Taxes and Assessments -                                -                               
Interest Income 2,502                        5,004                       
Interest and Bond Expense (44,760)                     (89,520)                    

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (42,258)                     (84,516)                    

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 72,309                      158,584                   

Net Position -  July 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 19,594,085 19,507,810

NET POSITION - END OF PERIOD 19,666,394$             19,666,394$            

 

Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



UKIAH VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 
SELECTED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FISCAL YEAR TO DATE AUGUST 31, 2022 
 
 
 

These accrual basis financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, and no 
opinion nor assurance is provided hereon.  Substantially all disclosures and RSI required by US generally accepted 
accounting principles have been omitted.  See Selected Information. 

(3) 

 
Ukiah Valley Sanitation District 
Selected Information  
For the  month ended and fiscal year to date August 31, 2022 
 
 
The accompanying financial statements include the following departures from accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America: 
 
The financial statements omit substantially all of the disclosures required by accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
  
The financial statements omit all required supplementary information, such as management discussion and 
analysis as required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
As of the month ended August 31, 2022, the District’s operating expense allocation from the City of Ukiah had 
not been determined. 
 
The effects of these departures have not been determined.  
 
 
 
 
 
   

Work
ing

 D
raf

t fo
r  

Disc
us

sio
n P

urp
os

es
 

Only



Ukiah Valley Sanitation District 
151 Laws Avenue 
Ukiah, CA 95482 

 

 1 

STAFF REPORT 
October 12, 2022 

 
To:  Board of Directors 
From:   Wing-See Fox 
Meeting Date: October 12, 2022 
 
Item #7A:  Mendocino LAFCo Official Independent Special District 2022 Election 

Ballot 
 
Overview 
On April 29, 2022, Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) sent a 
letter to the Boards of Independent Special Districts inviting nominations to fill two 
vacancies for Regular and Alternate Special District Members of the LAFCo Board. In 
accordance with Government Section 56332(f), the Executive Officer of LAFCo 
performs the nomination and election process on behalf of the Special District Selection 
Committee.  
 
Members are elected to four-year terms, and there are no term limits.  Nominations were 
due to LAFCo by August 1, 2022, and the District’s Interim General Manager submitted 
a Nomination Form for Director Candace Horsley on July 27, 2022.  Director Horsley’s 
nomination was ratified by the Board on August 2, 2022.  Since more than one 
nomination was received, LAFCo prepared and sent a ballot packet to each district on 
August 29, 2022.   
 
For an election to be valid, at least a quorum of 25 ballots must be returned to the LAFCo 
office by the deadline of November 11, 2022 at 12:00pm.  Attached is the election ballot 
packet which includes a notice from LAFCo, Candidate Information Sheets, and the 
official ballot to elect one candidate to serve as regular special district member on 
Mendocino LAFCo for the term beginning January 1, 2023 and ending December 31, 
2026.  Ballots can be returned to the LAFCo Office via email, mail, or hand delivery. 
 
Recommended Actions 
Vote for one candidate to serve as regular special district member on Mendocino LAFCo  
and direct Board Chair and Secretary of the Board to certify the ballot and return to the 
LAFCo Office. 
 
Attachments 

1. Official Independent Special District Election Ballot Packet 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       WING-SEE FOX 
       Interim District Manager 



MENDO CINO  
Local Agency Formation Commission 

Ukiah Valley Conference Center | 200 South School Street | Ukiah, California 95482 
Telephone: (707) 463-4470 | E-mail:  eo@mendolafco.org | Web: www.mendolafco.org 

 

 

 

 

COMMISSIONERS 
Tony Orth, Chair 
Special District Member 
 

Scott Ignacio, Vice-Chair 
City Member 
 
Gerald Ward, Treasurer 
Public Member 
 

Matthew Froneberger 
Special District Member 
 

Glenn McGourty 
County Member 
 
Maureen Mulheren 
County Member 
 

Mari Rodin 
City Member 
 
Gerardo Gonzalez, 
Alternate 
City Member 
 
John Haschak, Alternate 
County Member 
 

Richard Weinkle, Alternate 
Public Member 
 

Vacant, Alternate 
Special District Member 
 

 
STAFF 
Executive Officer 
Uma Hinman 
 

Analyst 
Larkyn Feiler 
 

Commission Clerk 
Kristen Meadows 
 

Counsel 
Scott Browne 
 
REGULAR MEETINGS 
First Monday of each month 
at 9:00 AM in the  
Mendocino County  
Board of Supervisors 
Chambers 
501 Low Gap Road, Ukiah 

 

Date: August 19, 2022 

To: Presiding Officers of Independent Special Districts in Mendocino County 

From: Uma Hinman, Executive Officer  

Subject: Official Independent Special District Election Ballot 

 
Announcement of election for the special district regular member seat on LAFCo. The 
election will fill a four-year term ending beginning January 1, 2023 through December 31, 
2026. 

 
The process for selecting special district members to LAFCo is set forth in Government 
Code Section (GOV) 56332, which provides for a meeting to be convened among 
representatives from each of the 49 independent special districts in Mendocino County, 
unless the Executive Officer determines that a meeting is not feasible. Pursuant to GOV 
56332(f), the LAFCo Executive Officer is conducting the nomination process and election 
by mail on behalf of the Independent Special District Selection Committee, determining 
that achieving a quorum for a meeting is not feasible. 

 
A request for nominations was sent via certified mail on April 29, 2022, announcing the 
vacancy of the alternate special district seat and the upcoming term expiration of a 
regular special district seat, and soliciting nominations from independent special district 
boards for candidates to fill the four-year terms (January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2026) 
for both seats. The nomination period ended August 1, with the following three (3) 
nominations received by the deadline.  

Nominee/Candidate Agency Status 

Regular Special District Member 

Francois Christen Anderson Valley CSD Election 

Candace Horsley Ukiah Valley Sanitation District Election 

Alternate Special District 

Francois Christen Anderson Valley CSD Appointed 

 
Having received only one nomination for the Alternate Special District term, in 
accordance with GOV 56332(c)(2), the nominee is deemed appointed. The receipt of 
more than one nomination for the Regular Special District term requires an election by 
mailed ballot. 
 
Enclosed is the official ballot to elect one candidate to serve as regular special district 
member on Mendocino LAFCo for the term that ends December 31, 2026.  
 
Ballots must be returned to Mendocino LAFCo at 200 South School Street, Ukiah, CA, 
95482, or by email to eo@mendolafco.org, on or before November 11, 2022 at 12:00 p.m.  

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Your district is encouraged to participate in this election process. For an election to be valid, at least a quorum 
of the special districts must submit valid ballots. The candidate receiving the most votes shall be deemed 
elected. 
 
Any nomination and ballot received by the Executive Officer after the date specified is invalid, provided, 
however, that if a quorum of ballots is not received by that date, the Executive Officer shall extend the date 
to submit ballots by 60 days and notify all districts of the extension. An election schedule with information 
about the counting of ballots and successful candidate notification is enclosed. 

 

Election Schedule 

LAFCo request for nominations mailed to independent special 
districts via certified mail 

Sent April 29, 2022 

Nomination deadline August 1 by 5:00 p.m. 

Ballots mailed to independent special districts via certified mail August 19 

Ballots due to LAFCo November 11 by 12:00 p.m. 

Ballots tallied at LAFCo office; successful candidate notified November 15 at 11:00 a.m. 

Election results mailed to independent special districts No later than November 22 

Confirmation of election results  
December 5, 2022  
Regular Meeting of the Commission 

 

Current Special District Members on LAFCo 

Designation Current Member Term Ends 

Regular Member Tony Orth, Brooktrails Township Community Services District December 31, 2024 

Regular Member Matthew Froneberger, Russian River Flood Control District December 31, 2022 

Alternate Member Vacant December 31, 2022 

 

 
 

Attachments: 
 
1. Candidate Information Forms 
2. List of Independent Special Districts of Mendocino County 
 
 
Enclosed:  Official 2022 Ballot  

  



 

 

Attachment 1 

 

Candidate Information Forms 

  



MENDO CINO  
Local Agency Formation Commission 

Ukiah Valley Conference Center | 200 South School Street | Ukiah, California 95482 
Telephone: (707) 463-4470 | E-mail:  eo@mendolafco.org | Web: www.mendolafco.org 

 

 

 

Special District Member  
Candidate Information Sheet 

 
 

Candidate Name Francois G. Christen 

Address 

Phone 

Email 

District Anderson Valley Community Services District 

Title Board Member 

 

1. Length of service with District: 
2 years, 8 months 

 
2. Present Occupation: 

Community Service 
 
3. Personal and Professional Background: 

• Worked in industry as a marketing researcher and marketing scientist from 1980 
to 2013 

• Employed at Wells Fargo Bank 16 years in Small Business, ATM Banking and 
Consumer lnsights Group; managed teams from 3 to 36 employees 

• Also worked at the Rand Corporation, SRI (Stanford Research Institute), and 
Landor Associates 

• Owned a small marketing strategy/research consultancy for seven years 

• Ph.D. in Experimental Psychology, UCLA 1980 
 

4. Summarize your interest in serving on LAFCo: 
I have been very interested in policy making since I was a graduate student and 
working at the Rand Corporation as an in-house consultant. At Rand l worked on a 
project studying growth in four major cities including San Jose, where the issue was 
whether citizens wanted housing versus orchards. I am interested in representing the 
interests of Special Districts in Mendocino County at LAFCO. In general, I am in favor 
of sensible regulations pertaining to LAFCO's mandate of establishing (formations and 



 

 

incorporations), expanding (annexations), decreasing (detachments), combining 
(mergers and consolidations), and eliminating (dissolutions and dis-incorporations) 
cities and special districts, as well as authorizing outside service contracts in 
Mendocino County. l would also be interested in contributing to the five years 
mandate to establish the sphere of influence of each city and special district within 
the County, and especially focusing on the interests of the Special Districts. 

 
5. Summarize your qualifications for serving on LAFCo: 

Two and a half years on the Board of the Anderson Valley Community Services 
District where I have: 

• Supported the Water/Wastewater initiative for Boonville, 

• Successfully applied to the Community Foundation of Mendocino County for 
two grants for the local Fire Department for radio upgrades and water tanks, 

• Spearheaded the institution of a SEP IRA for the CSD's permanent employees. 

• Small business owner (marketing strategy and research) for seven years 

• Successful career in a corporate environment (Wells Fargo). 
 
6. List local government involvement: 

• Board Member of the AV Community Services District 

• Regular participant in the Mendocino Fire Safe Council meetings representing the 
Nash Ranch 

• Road Association and local landowners. 
 
7. List civic organization involvement: 

• Volunteer to the Anderson Valley Adult School where I help out with English 
proficiency testing 

• Member of the Board of the Nash Ranch Road Association for 11 years (two years 
as chair) 

• Spearheaded a number of initiatives and grant-solicitation to improve fire safety 
on the Nash Ranch by reducing brush along the roads 

• Spearheaded the development of a tracking to system to fairly allocate budgets 
to repair competing road segments. 

 
8. List special interests or hobbies:  

Outdoor enthusiast: cycling, hiking, backpacking, camping. Reading 



MENDO CINO  
Local Agency Formation Commission 

Ukiah Valley Conference Center | 200 South School Street | Ukiah, California 95482 
Telephone: (707) 463-4470 | E-mail:  eo@mendolafco.org | Web: www.mendolafco.org 

 

 

 

Special District Member  
Candidate Information Sheet 

 
 

Candidate Name Candace Horsley  

Address 

Phone 

Email 

District Ukiah Valley Sanitation District 

Title Board Member 

 

1. Length of service with District: 
3 years 

 
2. Present Occupation: 

Retired City Manager 
 
3. Personal and Professional Background: 

I was City Manager at the City of Ukiah for thirteen years and worked on many issues 
that involved LAFCo.  I have dealt with local, state and federal agencies on a variety of 
issues and projects.   

 
4. Summarize your interest in serving on LAFCo: 

The purpose of LAFCo includes discouraging urban sprawl and providing efficient 
government services.  LAFCo also encourages the orderly formation and development 
of local agencies based upon local conditions and circumstances.  I believe that we 
are at a critical time in Mendocino County and would like to contribute to the orderly 
changes that could occur in this region.   

 
5. Summarize your qualifications for serving on LAFCo: 

I believe that my past experience with SOI’s, MSR’s and local planning issues provides 
me with a broad spectrum of experience in these areas.  Since being elected to the 
Sanitation Board, I have helped work through potentially contentious issues for the 
good of the entire valley and the Board.   Additionally, I have participated in 
City/County agreements and worked extensively with water districts. 



 

 

 
6. List local government involvement: 

I was with the City of Ukiah for 23 years in various capacities and have worked with 
the Inland Water and Power Commission on water supply and reliability issues 
including being the local sponsor with the Corps of Engineers for possible raising of 
Coyote Dam since 2008. 

 
7. List civic organization involvement: 

I have been on the Grace Hudson Museum Guild board for fourteen years and ran the 
Alzheimers unit of the Ukiah Hospice for three years. 

 
8. List special interests or hobbies:  

Travel, gardening, history, grandchildren 



 

 

Attachment 2 

Independent Special Districts of Mendocino County 

 

Albion-Little River Fire District 
Anderson Valley Cemetery District 
Anderson Valley Community Services District 
Brooktrails Township Community Services District 
Calpella County Water District 
Caspar South Water District 
Cemetery District of the Redwoods 
Comptche Community Services District 
Covelo Community Services District 
Covelo Fire Protection District 
Covelo Public Cemetery District 
Elk Community Services District 
Elk County Water District 
Fort Bragg Rural Fire Protection District 
Gualala Community Services District 
Hopland Cemetery District 
Hopland Fire Protection District 
Hopland Public Utility District  
Irish Beach Water District 
Laytonville County Water District 
Leggett Valley Fire Protection District 
Little Lake Fire Protection District 
Long Valley Fire Protection District 
Mendocino City Community Services District 
Mendocino Coast Health Care District 

Mendocino Coast Recreation and Park District 
Mendocino County Resource Conservation District 
Mendocino County Water Works District No. 2 
Mendocino Fire Protection District 
Mendocino-Little River Cemetery District 
Millview County Water District 
Noyo Harbor District 
Pacific Reefs Water District 
Piercy Fire Protection District 
Potter Valley Cemetery District 
Potter Valley Community Services District 
Potter Valley Irrigation District 
Redwood Coast Fire Protection District 
Redwood Valley-Calpella Fire District 
Redwood Valley County Water District 
Round Valley County Water District 
Russian River Cemetery District 
Russian River Flood Control and Water Conservation 
Improvement District 
South Coast Fire Protection District 
Ukiah Valley Fire Protection District 
Ukiah Valley Sanitation District 
Westport County Water District 
Westport-Ten Mile Cemetery District 
Willow County Water District



MENDO CINO  
Local Agency Formation Commission 

Ukiah Valley Conference Center | 200 South School Street | Ukiah, California 95482 
Telephone: (707) 463-4470 | E-mail:  eo@mendolafco.org | Web: www.mendolafco.org 

 
 

 

2022 ELECTION BALLOT 
 
Mark selection directly onto the ballot, voting for no more than one (1) candidate for the indicated seat.  

 

Special District Regular Member 

Please Vote for One (1) 

 Francois Christen – Anderson Valley Community Services District 

 Candace Horsley – Ukiah Valley Sanitation District 

 ________________________________________ _______________________________________________ 

(Write in Candidate) (Name of District) 

  

Certification of Ballot 

______________________________________________ ______________________________________________ 
District Board Chair or Designee District Manager/Clerk or Secretary of the Board  

______________________________________________ ______________________________________________ 
District Date 
  

 
Ballots must be returned to Mendocino LAFCo at 200 South School Street, Ukiah, CA, 95482, or by email to 

eo@mendolafco.org, on or before November 11, 2022 at 12:00 p.m.  

 






























	10.12.2022 Regular Meeting_Agenda
	09.14.2022 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Check Detail September 2022
	LAIF August 2022
	UVSD July 2022 Monthly FS - DRAFT
	UVSD August 2022 Monthly FS - DRAFT
	UVSD_ Staff Report re Vote for Director Horsley to LAFCo Board
	Overview

	2022-08-19 Ballot Packet FINAL_Redacted-c1
	Akerstrom Letter



